
 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LGES 
MEETING 

 
4.00 pm MONDAY, 6TH JANUARY, 2020 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 3.30 pm.   
This meeting is for Committee Members only  

 
Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  

 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 

 

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and 
using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to 

the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.   

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Key Stage 4 Performance Report   

 To consider the attached report 
 

5 - 14 

4. Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 
(RARS)  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

15 - 32 

5. Review of the Education Other Than At School 
(EOTAS) Provision  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

33 - 36 

6. Work programme 2019-20   

 To consider the attached report 
 

37 - 48 

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

9. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  H R Jones (Chair) 

                      S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors: H Barrett, B Carter, D Chaplin and M Jones 
 
Co-optees: C Brown, R Lazell, K Phelan, M Symonds, 
A Rees, K Jones and K Sutton 

  
together with appropriate officers 



If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Key Stage 4 Performance Report 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report gives a summary of the Key Stage 4 (KS4) performance 2018/2019. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The contents of this report are discussed and noted. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Significant changes have been made to the KS4 performance measures between 

reporting in 2018 and 2019. 
 
3.2 New performance measures have been introduced that use average points scores 

for interim performance measures of Literacy, Numeracy, Science, Capped 9 Points 
Score and Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge Certificate. 

 
3.3 Each GCSE grade is allocated a points score as follows: 

A* = 58, A = 52, B = 46, C = 40, D = 34, E = 28, F = 22, G = 16, U = 0 
 
3.4 Welsh Government also introduced the use of ‘first entry’ for any qualification for 

performance measures in 2019, which removes the ability to look at trends where 
performance measures appear the same between 2018 and 2019. 

 
3.5 Local authority performance for the interim performance measures at KS4 show that 

all indicators are nearly one whole grade below that seen nationally. 
 

Date Written 10th December 2019 

Report Author Sue Walker 

Service Area Learning 

Committee Date 6th January 2020 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



3.6 Capped 9 Points Score (3+6) is just over 40 points below that seen nationally, which 
is three-quarters of a grade below the national average for each subject. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 
4.1 Standards at the end of KS4 are unsatisfactory.  This is because attainment has 

decreased in 2018 and is well below Welsh averages for nearly all indicators. 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 In KS4, Fischer Family Trust (FFT) contextual value added (CVA) data illustrates 

that that many of the high schools perform well in relation to each of the interim 
performance measures with one high school performing exceptionally well.  
However, when comparing modelled outcomes against similar schools with the 
exception of science the local authority performs lower than expected. 

 
5.2 The performance of eFSM pupils in the local authority is positive when compared to 

the performance of eFSM nationally, with the local authority exceeding the national 
average for science and literacy average points.  However;  

 

 The average literacy points score for the local authority is 4.3 points below the 
Wales average. 

 The average numeracy points score for the local authority is 4.7 points below the 
Wales average. 

 The gap in performance of the average science points score between local 
authority and Wales is slightly smaller than that seen for literacy and numeracy 
but is still over 4 points (4.1 points). 

 Local authority performance for the Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge 
Certificate (WB SCC) is nearly a whole grade (5.6 points) below the national 
figure. 

 The performance of boys in the local authority is much weaker than the 
performance of girls, when both groups are compared against the national 
averages.  For each of the new interim measures, girls’ performance is around 
half a grade lower than seen nationally.  However, boys’ performance is around 
one whole grade for each measure, with the exception of WB SCC which is nearly 
1.25 grades lower than seen nationally. 

 The gap in performance between boys and girls is wider for the local authority 
than seen nationally for all five interim performance measures.  However, the 
performance of nFSM pupils is on average half a grade below that seen nationally 
for each of the five interim performance measures. 

 The gap in performance between eFSM and nFSM is narrower for the local 
authority than seen nationally for all five new performance measures. 
 

5.3 Further details on KS4 performance is provided in Appendix 1. 
 

5.4 Whilst categorisation judgements have not been validated nationally, a verbal update 
on provisional categorisation of schools will be provided at the meeting. 

 
 

Page 6



6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

 
6.1 It is the ambition of the local authority to be closer to or above the Welsh averages in 

all performance measures by 2022 and at or above the modelled outcomes in 2021. 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

 
7.1 Continue to challenge the performance of our secondary schools through Corporate 

Performance Panels and CSC School Improvement Forums. 
 
7.2 In conjunction with CSC, deliver Merthyr Tydfil as a Learning Organisation 

Programme to all secondary schools including the Pupil Referral Unit over the next 
five terms. 

 
7.3 Consult and deliver on the Raising Aspirtations, Raising Standards (RARS) Strategy 

with all education settings across the County Borough. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

 
8.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 

 
Best start to life:  Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals 
 
There is a strong relationship between wellbeing and attainment.  The improvement 
activities detailed in this report to help raise standards contribute directly to our 
wellbeing objective. 

 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 
Title: Impact of work in the Central South Consortium’s business plan on the region 

and Merthyr Tydfil Local Authority 
 

Date Written: 5th December 2019 
 

Authors: Andrew Williams (Acting Assistant Director), Emma Willmott Senior 
Challenge Adviser Central South Consortium 

 

  

Appendix 1 

Page 9



2 | P a g e  
 

Key stage 4 (KS4): 

 

This report is based on the information contained in the Statistical First Release 

“Examination results in schools in Wales, 2018/19” which states the following: 

“In 2018/19, Central South Wales was the region with the highest average Capped 9 points 

score (interim measure version) with 362.2 points.” 

“The lowest scoring Local Authority was Merthyr Tydfil with 313.4 points.” 

 

a. Significant changes have been made to the Key Stage 4 performance measures 

between reporting in 2018 and 2019. 

 

b. New performance measures have been introduced that use average points scores 

for interim performance measures of Literacy, Numeracy, Science, Capped 9 Points 

Score and Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge Certificate. 

 

c. Each GCSE grade is allocated a points score as follows: 

A* = 58, A = 52, B = 46, C = 40, D = 34, E = 28, F = 22, G = 16, U = 0 

 

d. Welsh Government also introduced the use of ‘first entry’ for any qualification for 

performance measures in 2019, which removes the ability to look at trends where 

performance measures appear the same between 2018 and 2019. 

 

e. Local authority performance for the interim performance measures at KS4 show that 

all indicators are nearly one whole grade below that seen nationally. 

 

f. Capped 9 Points Score (3+6) is just over 40 points below that seen nationally, which 

is three-quarters of a grade below the national average for each subject. 

 

g. The average Literacy points score for the LA is 4.3 points below the Wales average. 

 

h. The average Numeracy points score for the LAs is 4.7 points below the Wales 

average. 

 

i. The gap in performance of the average Science points score between LA and Wales is 

slightly smaller than that seen for Literacy and Numeracy but is still over 4 points (4.1 

points). 

 

j. LA performance for the Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge Certificate (WB SCC) is 

nearly a whole grade (5.6 points) below the National figure. 

 

k. The performance of boys in the LA is much weaker than the performance of girls, 

when both groups are compared against the National averages. For each of the new 

Page 10



3 | P a g e  
 

interim measures, girls’ performance is around half a grade lower than seen 

nationally. However, boys’ performance in the LA around one whole grade for each 

measure, with the exception of WB SCC which is nearly 1.25 grades lower than seen 

nationally. 

 

l. The gap in performance between boys and girls is wider for the LA than seen 

nationally for all five interim performance measures. 

 

m. The performance of eFSM pupils in the LA is positive when compared to the 

performance of eFSM nationally, with the LA exceeding the National average for 

Science and Literacy average points. The performance seen in Capped 9 Points Score 

and Numeracy measures is within 2.4 points of the national averages for these 

measures, and Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge Certificate being 3.1points 

below the national average. 

 

n. However, the performance of nFSM pupils is on average half a grade below that seen 

nationally for each of the five interim performance measures. 

 

o. The gap in performance between eFSM and nFSM is narrower for the LA than seen 

nationally for all five new performance measures. 

 

p. No comparisons are included in this section of the report for KS4 legacy measures, 

but the latest LA performance for these measures can be found in Annex A of this 

report. 

 

 

Strengths 

 In KS4, Fischer Family Trust (FFT) contextual value added (CVA) data illustrates that 
that many of the high schools perform well in relation to each of the interim 
performance measures with one high school performing exceptionally well.  

 The performance of eFSM pupils in the LA is positive when compared to the 

performance of eFSM nationally, with the LA exceeding the National average for 

Science and Literacy average points. 

 

 

Areas for Development 

 At KS4, improve the performance of all pupils, particularly that of boys, in all of the 

key indicators in the interim performance measures 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



4 | P a g e  
 

Challenge and support provided by the Consortium on behalf of the Merthyr Tydfil 

Borough Council 

1. In 2018-2019 Merthyr Tydfil Local Authority contributed £246,603 towards the core 

functions of the consortium.  In addition to the core costs of the consortium this has 

provided funding for 4.00 challenge advisers (1.5 FTE) plus support from 

Accelerated Progress Leads (0.17)FTE effective from September 2017) and senior 

Challenge Advisers (1FTE). 

 

2.  7 schools were inspected during 2018-2019 – 2 secondary and 5 primary schools 

Of the 7 schools, 1 secondary and 1 primary were asked to write excellent practice 

case studies. 1 secondary and 1 primary school were judged as adequate and in 

need of improvement and require Estyn Review. No schools were placed in the 

either of the statutory categories of Significant Improvement or Special Measures.  

 

3. Elected Members will be aware that we use a categorisation process to identify the 

schools in need of support using both data and judgement of leadership and 

capacity to improve.  During 2018-2019, the consortium continued to work closely 

on behalf of the Local Authority to monitor the progress of the schools in need.  Of 

the 28 schools in Merthyr Tydfil, two schools required red level of support and four 

schools required amber level of support.  There were twelve schools requiring green 

support and ten requiring yellow support. 

 
4. Provisional categorisation outcomes for 2019-2020 identify that for many schools 

improvement has been sustained and continues across the authority within both 

the primary and secondary sector. In responding to the increased level of support 

needed by a few primary schools it has been necessary to categorise these schools 

as amber.   The final categorisation outcomes will become public on the 31st January 

and therefore we will be presenting verbally on outcomes at the Scrutiny 

Committee on the 6th of January 2020.  

 

5. Challenge advisers continue to have a relevant educational background and level of 
experience and provide good quality support and challenge to schools. They have 
continued to work well and in partnership with the local authority to provide 
effective monitoring, challenge, support and intervention where needed. Challenge 
advisers have continued to commission bespoke support and intervention from the 
wider support teams within the Central South Consortium.  

 

6. Other support provided by the consortium to schools in Merthyr Tydfil has included:  

a. 14 schools, comprising of the primary and secondary sectors within Merthyr 

Tydfil have accessed professional development programmes provided by Hub 

schools across the region in 18-19.   

 

Page 12



5 | P a g e  
 

b. Merthyr Tydfil schools involved in providing support as part of the Hub 

programme in 2018-2019 were:  

 Professional Learning – Bishop Hedley High School 

 Mathematics – Cyfartha High School 

 Lead Practitioners – Cyfarthfa High School.  
The following schools were identified as Welsh Government Pioneer Schools: 

 Bishop Hedley High School 

c. Nearly all Merthyr Tydfil schools have been involved in SIG working, and during 

2018-2019 SIGs including  Merthyr Tydfil schools have focused on the new 

curriculum, Welsh Bacc, five A*/A, Foundation Phase, self-evaluation, literacy, 

numeracy, teaching and pedagogy, pupil voice, leadership, ICT and digital 

curriculum framework (DCF) assessment, science, wellbeing and closing the gap.  

SIGs are reviewed annually and have to provide an impact report against their 

priorities twice a year in order to be funded; 

d. Support for schools is prioritised following a strategic analysis of regional 

needs.  This is reviewed on a termly basis as information and priorities emerge. 

Schools receive intensive support for core subjects as agreed with the school’s 

challenge adviser and progress is fed back to school through a strategic evaluation 

for improvement statement and to the local authority director in the termly 

performance report.  Foundation subject qualifications are supported through 

Lead Practitioner networks, which provide opportunities for schools to 

collaborate on joint practice development and share effective strategies and 

resources.  Hub school programmes are aligned to support regional needs and the 

consortium brokers professional learning opportunities for schools requiring 

improvement across the regional professional learning offer.  Intensive school-to-

school support is facilitated through requests for additional capacity funding from 

Hub schools and lead practitioners to support targeted improvement activities in 

more vulnerable schools. 

 

 

 

 Additional support requested through the Local Authority Annex 

1.  In 2018-2019, additional funding was provided to support Merthyr Tydfil specific 

priorities via the Local Authority Annex. Funding of £7,916 was used to upskill staff 

to deliver person centred reviews across all schools plus Merthyr College and Early 

Years settings.  

 

 

 

 

Page 13



6 | P a g e  
 

Annex A: Headline results across the Merthyr Tydfil 2018-2019 

No performance measures for Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 or Key Stage 3 will be included 

in this section due to the changes introduced by Welsh Government in relation to using this 

data for accountability purposes below a National level. An LA summary of performance was 

presented to members in September. 

Final 2019 Results 

New Interim Performance Measures 

 Merthyr Tydfil Central South 
Consortium 

Wales 

Capped 9 Points 
Score 

313.4 362.2 353.8 

Av Pts Literacy 34.7 39.6 39.0 

Av Pts Numeracy 32.4 37.3 37.1 

Av Pts Science 32.7 36.7 36.8 

Av Pts WB SCC 30.8 37.0 36.4 
 

Legacy Measures  

 Merthyr Tydfil Central South 
Consortium 

Wales 

Level 1 Threshold 89.0 93.2 92.8 

Level 2 Threshold inc 
EWM (*) 

41.1 55.0 53.8 

5A*-A 9.5 20.4 18.0 
(*) including Literature 

Please note that the legacy measures are not directly comparable to previous years, and therefore no 

historical information is provided in this report. 

 

New Interim Performance Measures compared with modelled performance (provision 

data) – Mainstream schools only 

 Points Score Modelled Score Difference 

Capped 9 Points Score 345.9 354.9 -9.0 

Av Pts Literacy 37.9 38.8 -0.9 

Av Pts Numeracy 35.5 36.7 -1.2 

Av Pts Science 36.8 36.0 0.7 

Av Pts WB SCC 34.7 36.3 -1.5 
 

 

Page 14



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 
(RARS) 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report outlines the purpose of the Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards 

Strategy. 
 
1.2 The report considers how this strategy will be consulted on during the Spring Term. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The contents of this report are discussed and comments provided to officers for 

consideration and deliberation. 
 

 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Standards of attainment at the end of KS4 continue to decline across the County 

Borough. 
 
3.2 The previous Raising Standards Strategy was out of date and there was a need to 

review the way forward 
 
3.3 A Headteacher working group was established in the Summer Term 2019 to 

consider the aims and objectives of this key strategy 
 
3.4 The working group was expanded to include officers from Early Years and the Youth 

Service. 
  

Date Written 10th December 2019 

Report Author Sue Walker 

Service Area Learning 

Committee Date 6th January 2020 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 
4.1 The previous strategy was written when the local authority was in Special Measures 

and was judged against the performance measures that were pertinent at that time.   
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 There is a draft strategy in place which has been put together by headteachers, 

officers from early years, youth services and representation from Merthyr College 
(Appendix 1). 

 
5.2 The strategy outlines the four high level objectives for success. 
 
5.3 The actions to meet the objectives will be finalised as part of the consultation 

process.  
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

 
6.1 It is the ambition of the local authority to be closer to or above the Welsh averages in 

all performance measures by 2022 and at or above the modelled outcomes in 2021. 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

 
7.1 Undertake a robust consultation process on the objectives within the strategy to 

include: 

 Learning Department staff 

 Wider Council staff 

 Elected Members 

 All headteachers 

 All teaching staff 

 Parents 

 School Councils 

 Merthyr Tydfil Borough Wide Youth Forum 

 Governing Bodies 

 The College 

 Local Employers 

 Central South Consortium 
 
7.2 Following the consultation process the strategy will be finalised and published for 

September 2020. 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

 
8.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 
 

Best start to life:  Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals 

 
 

Page 16



There is a strong relationship between wellbeing and attainment.  The improvement 
activities detailed in this report to help raise standards contribute directly to our 
wellbeing objective. 

 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  1 | 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Raising Aspirations, Raising 

Standards Strategy 

 

Merthyr Tydfil 

 

2020 to 2024 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 19



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  2 | 13 

 

Summary 

 

The strategy sets out the key outcomes, activities and behaviours that the council will 

pursue in support of our corporate priorities and a culture of continuous 

improvement. In support of the Council’s Focus on the Future Plan 2017-2022, the 

Raising Aspirations Raising Standards Strategy (RARS) will directly influence and 

impact on one of the Council’s priorities of improving attainment. It aims to ensure 

that children and young people are we ll placed to move into adult life  and 

employment or further/higher education. Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council aims 

for effective learning and teaching throughout each young person’s school experience 

to enable them to maximise their potential.  

Within this strategy, the overarching themes are to raise the aspirations of all our 

children and young people, and to enable them to attain the highest possible 

outcomes. We also aim to ensure equity through closing the gap in education 

outcomes between children from the most and least deprived backgrounds.  We 

believe this will contribute to social and economic prosperity within Merthyr Tydfil.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  3 | 13 

 

Our Pledge 

 

The RARS Strategy is a major priority for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council in its 

role of supporting our children and young people to aspire to achieve the very best 

and contribute to a vibrant and successful community. We are committed to enabling 

all learners, of all ages at all stages, to aspire, attain and achieve to their full 

potential.  

In Merthyr Tydfil we believe all children an d young people are entitled to the best 

possible life chances that we can give them by enhancing their access to the highest 

quality educational opportunities, whilst challenging their aspirations to achieve not 

just their expected potential but beyond.  

To achieve this, we will work with our partners to address underachievement and 

deliver real improvements within our schools and other educational settings . As we 

move forward we need to ensure we are meeting the changing needs and aspirations 

of children and young people as they travel on their educational journey s. We want to 

make a positive impact both on individual lives and in the way the young people go on 

to live, work and learn.  

Currently Merthyr Tydfil is faced with great challenges in driving up s tandards. We 

know we need to do more in order to deliver positive changes across all our 

educational settings and currently outcomes across them are too variable. We wish to 

focus on a number of specific priority areas : 

1. Improve standards of literacy, numeracy and digital competency across all 

educational settings. 

2. Improve collaboration across all educational settings , including partners and 

stakeholders such as local employers and parents.  

3. Improve skills of all learners to enable them to access further education, 

employment or training 

4. Ensure an integrated approach to Continuing Professional Development (CPD) 

for all involved in education which enables practitioners to focus on raising 

aspirations and raising standards  

The next five years will be a perio d of significant challenge for the Council with 

ongoing budget constraints expected to continue. However, the Council is committed 

to the development and improvement of Educational services, and these will be  the 

continued focus for all in  the Local Authority, educational settings and schools across 

the County Borough. This will help to ensure that we continue to tackle the most 

important issues for Merthyr Tydfil. The RARS Strategy will also support the Council’s 

long term focus on addressing inequality in  society. 

It is therefore imperative that this strategy is underpinned by individual service and 

school strategies - that the culture and ethos of raising  aspirations, attainment and 

achievement is embedded in all our work and that we work with all our partners and 

Page 21



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  4 | 13 

 

the wider community to ensure the best learning opportunities for our children and 

young people. 

A key part of this strategy is high quality leadership. We recognise that high quality 

leadership is the most important factor in improving te aching and learning and 

encouraging pupils to achieve their very best. This includes leaders at all levels 

including governors and other bodies who are responsible for raising aspirations and 

standards. We have many excellent leaders across the County Boro ugh who are 

currently delivering great standards of education in their settings. However going 

forward we need to strive to allow effective and successful practices to be shared 

across all educational establishments , thereby developing a culture of collabo ration 

where the educational outcomes of all children and young people across Merthyr 

Tydfil is ‘everybody’s responsibility’.  

 

Our Commitment therefore is that: 

 

Through effective leadership at all levels, the education community 

within Merthyr Tydfil will raise aspirations and raise standards to 

ensure successful futures for all. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  5 | 13 

 

1     Improve standards of literacy, numeracy and digital competency across  

           all educational settings. 

 

Description  

 

This outcome aims to increase attainment and achievement for all learners, from Early 

Years to KS4, across all Merthyr Tydfil schools. Raised attainment and achievement 

increases personal, social and economic opportunities, and ensures that young people 

are in a good position to fulfil their potential.  

 

Activities 

The main activities of the service during the period of the strategy will be to:  

 …  

 …  

 …  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be established through the consultation phase 

Page 23



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  6 | 13 

 

2     Improve collaboration across all educational settings, including partners 

           and stakeholders such as local employers and parents. 

 

Description  

 

This outcome aims to continually  improve our collaboration between all our 

educational settings, with our external partners and with oth er stakeholders who also 

influence children and young people’s aspirations and attainment such as businesses 

in the local area and parents. We need effective collaboration along with good 

integration of services and provision where appropriate.  

The quality of engagement that parents have with their child’s learning is a key factor 

to ensuring successful outcomes.  School leaders will improve and increase ways in 

which parents and families can engage in partnership with schools to support their 

children. 

 

Activities 

The main activities of the service during the period of the strategy will be to:  

 …  

 …  

 …  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be established through the consultation phase 

Page 24



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  7 | 13 

 

3     Improve skills of all learners to enable them to access further education, 

           employment or training. 
 

Description 

 

This outcome aims to link the world of learning to the world of work more 

successfully, ensuring our children and young people have the right skills and 

qualifications businesses need. It also aims to ensure all learners are in a place to 

continue into further education or training if they wish.  

Better collaboration with local businesses and colleges ensures a clearer focus for 

young people on what opportunities are available to them, so they can tailor the e nd 

of their educational journey with a more targeted goal in sight.  

 

Activities 

The main activities of the service during the period of the strategy will be to:  

 …  

 …  

 …  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be established through the consultation phase 

Page 25



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  8 | 13 

 

4     Ensure an integrated approach to Continuing Professional Development 

          (CPD) for all involved in education which enables practitioners to focus 

           on raising aspirations and raising standards. 

 

Description  

 

This outcome aims to ensure continuous prof essional development activities are a 

central and established part of a practitioner’s work . It promotes a ‘learning culture’ 

where practitioners are involved in a continuous process of learning, development and 

improvement. It will focus on developing lea ders at all levels in order to further 

develop capacity and improve outcomes.  

 

Activities 

The main activities of the service during the period of the strategy will be to:  

 …  

 …  

 …  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be established through the consultation phase 

Page 26



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  9 | 13 

 

Benefits 

 

The strategy aims to produce the following benefits:  
 

 Increased attendance across all schools in the County Borough.  

 A highly skilled workforce that can deliver the very best educational experience 

to all learners.  

 Continued professional development to ensure staff remain skilled and resilient 

to be able to support the delivery of the overall goal to raise aspirations and 

raise standards.  

 

How will we measure our success? 

 

 

 

 

 

CAP 9 Data 

Percentage of pupils that leave school without a qualification 

Number of NEETs 

Attendance 

Average point scores for literacy, numeracy, science and digital literacy 

ESTYN – All schools are assessed to be ‘good’ or better 

Continue to move closer to the Welsh average 

 

 

 

 

To be finalised as part of the consultation phase 

Everyone is 

entitled to an 

education 

No child is left 

behind 

Page 27



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  10 | 13 
 

Strategy Governance 

 

The process and timescales for the development , publication and review of the 

strategy are set out, including consultation with the appropriate stakeholders.  

 

Group Governance Scrutiny Role Reporting Frequency 
MTCBC Management Team a. Engagement on the 

strategy and outcomes 
b. Regular updates on 

the progress of specific 
programmes of work 

 

 

   

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

Strategy Monitoring 

 

An annual review will be undertaken and reported to the council’s Corporate 

Management Team. 

An end of strategy review will be undertaken in the final year of the strategy to report 

on the achievement in the outcomes and final position in the performance indicators 

(against the target) and the agreed actions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  11 | 13 

 

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015   

 

When planning, making decisions and implementing changes, we need to take into account the impact they could have on people 

living their lives in Merthyr Tydfil in the future. The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act puts in place a ‘sustainable development 

principle’ which tells organisations how to go about  meeting their duty under the Act.  

There are 5 key sustainable ways of working which define this principle and are what we need to think about to show that we have 

applied the sustainable development principle. We need to make sure that our actions today fulfil present requirements without 

affecting the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.  

While compiling the RARS strategy we have followed the 5 ways of working, to help us work better together and to tackle some of the 

long-term challenges we are facing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 29



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  12 | 13 

 

The Well-being of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015 sets out sustainable development principles by which we will work to so that we ensure the best for 

our future generations.  Five ways of working are set out in the Act and these are outlined below in terms of this strategy. 

 

 

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

This strategy is a long-term approach to improving the education provision 

in Merthyr Tydfil. The short -term needs will continually be balanced against 

the longer-term needs as outlined in this strategy . 

We will seek to maintain the important of prevention and early intervention 

with children to reduce any risks or challenges that may occur later on. 

Risks such as those associated with adverse childhood experiences. 

Improving the quality of a child’s life and well -being is key.  

The strategy is not inclusive to Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and 

will see key partnerships being developed or continuing.  

The strategy commits us to develop these good practices that are already in 

place and to develop new and improved collaborative thinking . 

We have involved and wil l continue to involve all stakeh olders in education 

across the County Borough. 

P
age 30



Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy 2020/24 

 
Ensuring successful futures for all                                                                             P a g e  13 | 13 
 

Appendices 

 

 Background and Theory 

 Detailed Action Plan 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

Date Written 9th December 2019 

Report Author Sarah Bowen  

Service Area Learning 

Committee Date 6th January 2020 

 
To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Review of the Education Other Than At School 
(EOTAS) Provision 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides members with information regarding: 

 the impact of the recent changes to provision for EOTAS; and 

 the impact on attainment for this group of young people. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The content of this report is discussed and noted. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Historically EOTAS pupils within Merthyr Tydfil have been educated in a variety of 

provisions under a variety of guises.  However, what has remained constant is the 
increasing demand for bespoke support for those pupils with social, emotional and 
behavioural needs.  

 
3.2 Nearly all EOTAS pupils in Merthyr Tydfil display challenging behaviour and as such 

require support for their wellbeing as well as their academic needs.  To ensure that 
these pupils receive the education to which they are entitled, a decision was made in 
2018 to register the provision for these challenging children and young people as a 
Pupil Referral Unit (PRU).  This unit would therefore be subject to the same 
accountability framework as a mainstream school.   

 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



3.3 The same entitlement for education applies to those pupils in receipt of special 
tuition; many of these young people cannot access a fulltime placement due to their 
high level of needs, others may need special tuition for medical reasons.  In order to 
build capacity a Service Level Agreement was made with Equity Solutions to deliver 
educational and social skills support for these pupils.  

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 The PRU is a relatively new established provision serving the pupils of Merthyr 

Tydfil.  It has been established as a result of a realignment of behaviour and EOTAS 
provision due to the increased demand for, and the gaps in provision for, pupils with 
Social Emotional and Behaviour Difficulties (SEBD).  

 
4.2 The local authority registered a PRU for Key Stages 2, 3 and 4 pupils as of 

1st September 2018.  The provision is on two sites; Ty Dysgu Dowlais (the former 
Dowlais infant site) for Key Stage 2 and Ty Dysgu Homfray (the former Ty Homfray 
site) for Key Stages 3 and 4.  The pupils formerly in the Dowlais Infant school moved 
to a new demountable building on the primary school site as of September 2018. 

 
4.3 September 2018 saw the launch of Dysgu Newydd; an alternative provision for 

learners unable to access mainstream education or Merthyr Tydfil’s PRU.  Learners 
may have medical, wellbeing or behavioural considerations that make a school 
environment difficult to access.  

 
4.4 With Dysgu Newydd there is the offer of one to one home tuition where this is 

deemed appropriate, or pairings/small groups where learners can access a more 
relaxed and personalised environment.  Venues used include Ty Dysgu Dowlais, 
Cefn Community Centre and the 3Gs Community Centre, Gurnos.  This places 
pupils in the heart of their communities and allows staff to support the development 
of social skills.  

 
4.5 The curriculum offer is balanced to reflect the needs of learners and the 

opportunities offered if they were at school.  A typical diet consists of GCSE English 
(also Literature where appropriate), mathematics, numeracy, BTEC SWEET, London 
Institute Business Finance (LIBF) Personal Finance and Agored courses where 
possible.  

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 
5.1 As of November 2019, for those pupils on special tuition of which there are 60 

approximately, most Y11 learners are predicted to exceed their school targets and 
some have already achieved LIBF Personal Finance and/or BTEC SWEET.  This 
year has seen an increase in the use of group settings and Dysgu Newydd is 
developing ever closer links with schools in order to facilitate the potential of 
returning learners to schools where this is appropriate.  Dysgu Newydd staff 
regularly meet with local authority officers and school staff to update on progress and 
contribute evidence to Panel, Social Services meetings, NEETS updates with the 
local authority and school parents’/open evenings.  

 

Page 34



5.2 There are currently eight pupils in the KS2 setting and approximately 30 pupils in the 
KS3/4 setting at the PRU.  Both cohorts are subject to change depending upon the 
need across the local authority.  The PRU operates upon a revolving door policy and 
pupils remain on the roll of their home school.  

 
5.3 Approximately 50% of pupils are entitled to free school meals and 2% of pupils are 

Children Looked After (CLA).  All pupils that attend the school have been identified 
as having significant social, emotional and behavioural needs.  Across the academic 
year several pupils have received Statement of Special Education Needs for a range 
of learning needs ranging from ASD, SLD and PMED.  The academic baseline of 
nearly all pupils is extremely low. 

 
5.4 Despite the significant improvements made at the PRU in respect of leadership, 

vision, ethos, staffing, wellbeing and curriculum the school continues to require the 
highest level of support from the Consortium. 

 
5.5 Attendance is a priority for the local authority and so far this is at approximately 70% 

for those on special tuition and approximately 60% for those attending the PRU.  Any 
attendance figure for learners needs to recognise the acute needs of the individuals 
and medical conditions that have an impact upon attendance.  Furthermore, due to 
the small numbers, a persistent absence by one pupil will have a significant effect on 
the overall attendance of the cohort.  However, it should be noted that for most of the 
pupils there is a marked improvement between attendance figures of those on Dysgu 
Newydd and at the PRU when compared to their attendance at school. 

 
5.6 During the academic year 2018/19 the Headteacher and school staff worked hard to 

embed several policies into the setting, one of which was the Behaviour Policy.  This 
resulted in an increase in exclusions, but now that this policy is firmly understood by 
all there has been a decrease in exclusions during 2019/20.   

 

 There has been a decrease in the total number of exclusions issued from 19 in 
2018/19 to 16 in 2019/20. 

 There has been a decrease in the total number of days lost 34.5 in 2018/19 to 22 
in 2019/20.  

 
5.7 The curriculum offer for pupils receiving special tuition and for those attending the 

PRU has been extended and has been adapted to meet the needs of the challenges 
of these learners.  The progress of all pupils is tracked and reported to the 
Management Committee and at Special Tuition Panel.  Tailored intervention 
programmes to raise basic skills are delivered.  It should be noted that the Year 11 
pupils who left Ty Dysgu in July 2019, would only have had two and half term’s worth 
of support under the new structure.  Of the five Year 11 leavers in 2018/19, four 
pupils left with at least one recognised qualification at L1.  Of the four pupils entered 
for examinations three pupils (75%) achieved the equivalent of 5 GCSEs A*-G.  This 
is a significant improvement on the previous year where this was achieved by 37.5% 
of the pupils.  There are higher expectations for those in Year 11 currently.  The total 
pupil population from 2017/18 to 2018/19 had increased from 32 to 37, which now 
includes pupils at KS2.  There is no comparative data for those in KS2.  

 

Page 35



5.8 For those receiving special tuition the total pupil population number has also 
increased over the two-year period as has the levels of attainment.  

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 
6.1 The local authority needs to enable improved outcomes for the pupils in these 

provisions in respect of wellbeing, attainment, attendance and behaviour and 
ultimately for more pupils to be ready to return to their home school.  

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 
7.1 The following will need to be undertaken in order to enable further improvements:   

 

 Continued support from the Central South Consortium for the PRU;  

 Further development of a collective vision across both sites of the PRU;  

 Develop the curriculum offer for all EOTAS pupils;  

 Provide appropriate training opportunities for PRU staff; 

 Tender for the continued support for high quality tutors to support those pupils in 
receipt of special tuition; and 

 Build capacity within the team of tutors to ensure that high standards are 
maintained for pupils in receipt of special tuition.  

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 The content of this report relates to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 

 

 Best start to life - Children and young people are equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners and confident individuals. 

 Living Well - tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community 
resilience; improving emotional wellbeing and mental health. 

 Working Well - preparing learners for the life of work. 
 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER(LEARNING) 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect of each 

proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  
 
 

Page 36



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Work Programme 2019/20  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Work Programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in planning 
for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 18th December 2019 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 6th  January 2020 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 38



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives and priorities? 

b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department; 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue; 

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review; 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

Page 39



c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

Page 40



f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence). 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


  

APPENDIX I 

Page 42



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Linked to MTCBC’s 
Wellbeing Objectives 

(Corporate Objectives)? 

Officer & Cabinet Member 
 

 (Other) 
Scrutiny Focus  

20st May 2019 

‘Schools as learning 
organisations’.  How the 
council, schools and CSC are 
working together to 
implement this new 
education practice to 
implement the new 
curriculum 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / 
Andrew Williams/Emma 
Wilmot (CSC) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To consider the 
implications of the current changes within education 
and how these impact on schools. To questions how 
these will impact on performance of pupils at all 
stages. 

Draft Annual Work 
Programme 2018/19 

BS Best Start to Life    Scrutiny and Challenge: - To consider the draft 
Annual Work programme for 2019/20  
 

1st  July 2019 

Education Department 
current position statement 
(as part of the preparation for 
a peer review visit in July 
which will be looking at the 
current SER) 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / 
Chris Hole/Sarah 
Bowen/Anthony Lewis/ 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To provide challenge on 
the evidence used to support judgements made by 
the Learning Department current position. And to 
challenge the validity of identified next steps to drive 
up improvement 

Estyn Case Studies 
Ynysowen 
Bishop Hedley 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life    Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Head teachers and 
chairs of governors will be attending the meeting to 
share good practice in their respective schools 
following recent Estyn visits.  

P
age 43



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

2rd September 
2019 

Performance Report – 
Foundation Phase,  KS2 and 
KS3 (to also include a verbal 
update on KS4 results, which 
are only being made available 
on August) 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- to receive a report  on the 
attainment in Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key 
Stage 3 in 2019.  

Impact of Flying Start and 
Registered Education 
Providers on outcomes in 
maintained schools  

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Chris Hole Scrutiny and Challenge: to receive a report on the 
work within early years to support the improvement 
of outcomes for pupils once they transition to 
primary school.  

7th October 
2019 

Impact against identified 
priorities for improvement.  
(Business Improvement Plans) 

BS Best Start to Life   

Cllr Lisa Mytton/Sue Walker/ 
Anthony Lewis 

Scrutiny and Challenge: the learning department has 
identified priorities for improvement through its self-
evaluation process.  The Committee will have the 
opportunity to scrutinise the evidence used to 
provide judgements on progress of impact.  

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 2) 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element. 
 

25th 
November 
2019 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 3) 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- The Scrutiny Committee will 
receive a report from the Chief Education Officer on 
a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element. 

Financial Sustainability – 
report from PenyDre cluster 
Include information about 
Salix projects 
Impact of ISB review 
Work of Schools Budget 
Forum 
Only information regarding an 
‘Update on Carbon and Energy 
Management Activities in 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- To consider how this 
process might be rolled out across other schools 
within the county borough in order to provide 
financial savings. To consider how pupils have been 
involved in this process and how the voice of the 
young person might be improved further within 
strategic activities. 
To consider the role of the Schools Budget forum 
To consider the effectiveness of the Schools Budget 
forum in identifying areas for efficiencies 

P
age 44



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

Schools’ was presented at this 
scrutiny. 

Additional Learning Needs 
(ALN) report to include the 
‘Readiness Tool.’ 
This additional report is a 
request from the 7th October 
2019 Learning and LGES 
Scrutiny. 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / 
Sarah Bowen 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - to receive a report on 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN) which should also 
include details on the ‘Readiness Tool.’ 

Securing Sufficient Nursery 
Education for the County 
Borough of Merthyr Tydfil. 
This additional report is a 
request from Anthony Lewis.  

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / 
Anthony Lewis  

Scrutiny and Challenge: - to receive a report for 
challenge prior to this being considered by Full 
Council.  
 

6th January 
2020 

Report on the performance at 
key stage 4 (to include the 
Capped 9 measure) and 
attendance  
 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue 
Walker/Sarah Bowen/Emma 
Willmott/ CSC 

Scrutiny and Challenge: The scrutiny committee will 
receive a report from the Chief Education Officer on 
all aspects of performance and outcomes from across 
education services, including the latest school 
categorisations from Central South Consortium 

EOTAS 
 
This report was requested by 
the Members of scrutiny on 
7th October 2019. 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge: - To consider the impact of 
the recent changes to provision for EOTAS and the 
impact on attainment for this group of young people. 
The report presented to Scrutiny should specifically 
include how many children there are in Merthyr 
Tydfil receiving education at home and how this 
process works. 

Impact of Youth Service on 
Attainment and Wellbeing 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker/ 
Chris Hole 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - the committee will receive 
a report on the impact of the work within youth 
services to improve the attainment and wellbeing of 
young people  

RARS – Raising Aspirations, 
Raising Standards 
This additional report is a 
request from Sue Walker and 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker/ 
Emma Willmott 

Scrutiny and Challenge: The scrutiny committee will 
receive a report for challenge prior to stakeholder 
consultation.  

P
age 45



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

agreed by the Members at 
scrutiny on 25th November . 

24th February 
2020 

Attendance  
Non SLA/SLA 
Persistent Absenteeism 
Good Practise 
Exclusions – SEBD 
Reduced Timetables 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton/ Sue Walker/ 
Sarah Bowen  

Scrutiny and Challenge: - to receive a detailed 
analysis of attendance against support provided for 
specific schools(e,g SLA/nonSLA); to consider the 
early impact of the learning departments action plan 
to improve persistent absenteeism 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 1) 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue 
Walker/Joe Colsey/Schools 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element. 

Financial Sustainability – 
report from PenyDre cluster 
Include information about 
Salix projects 
Impact of ISB review 
Work of Schools Budget 
Forum. 
 
This was a deferred item from 
25th November. Only 
information regarding an 
‘Update on Carbon and Energy 
Management Activities in 
Schools’ was presented on 
25th Nov.  The deferral of the 
rest of the report was agreed 
by the Members of Learning 
and LGES Scrutiny on 25th 
November 2019. 
 

BS Best Start to Life   Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- To consider how this 
process might be rolled out across other schools 
within the county borough in order to provide 
financial savings. To consider how pupils have been 
involved in this process and how the voice of the 
young person might be improved further within 
strategic activities. 
To consider the role of the Schools Budget forum 
To consider the effectiveness of the Schools Budget 
forum in identifying areas for efficiencies 

P
age 46



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 

20th  April 
2020 

Impact of work of CSC in 
schools causing concern 
Value for Money overall for 
CSC 

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / Scrutiny and Challenge: to consider the report from 
CSC on their work in specific schools across the 
county borough; to consider whether the borough 
receives value for money against its contribution to 
CSC 

    

P
age 47



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2019/20 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 

 

 
Additional items to consider for Work 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

To invite / visit Heads and Chairs of Governance at the following schools :- 
 

 Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Santes Tudful 

 Pen-y-dre High School 

 Ynysowen Community Primary School 

 Visit Educated Other Than at School (EOTAS) to see what provision is available (before 8th April). 

 Visit LRB’s (Learning Resource Basis) as part of the programme of visits. 
 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 

 

P
age 48


	Agenda
	3 Key Stage 4 Performance Report
	Appendix 1

	4 Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards Strategy (RARS)
	Appendix 1

	5 Review of the Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) Provision
	6 Work programme 2019-20
	Appendix 1


